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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the City Council of the
City of Caribou, Maine

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activity, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Caribou, Maine as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Caribou, Maine’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

The financial statements referred to above do not include the financial activities
of Cary Medical Center and Caribou Utilities District, which should be included in
order to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The financial statements of the component units have been or are being
audited and reported on by other independent auditors. The effects on the
financial statements of these omissions are not reasonably determinable.

In our opinion, except for the effects on the financial statements of the omission
described in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Caribou, Maine, as of December
31, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated June 17, 2011 on our consideration of the City of Caribou, Maine’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.



To the City Council of the
City of Caribou, Maine

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information,
and Modified Approach for City Capital Assets on pages I through XV and Supplements
1 and 2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of BEmerica, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
ingquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Caribou, Maine's basic financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,
and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Bmerica. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

% ¢( %7”_,:,&
June 17, 2011



City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

The following narrative is an overview and discussion of the financial activities
of the City of Caribou for the financial year ending December 31, 2010.
Management’s discussion and analysis should be viewed as a tool to aid the reader
in understanding of the City’s financial performance along with an enhanced insight
to the attached financial statements and notes to the financials.

Financial highlights:

» The City of Caribou, Maine adheres to the standards of GASB 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State
and Local Governments. Under these standards management has prepared
statements of comparison indicating the relative changes within the City's
organizational and financial structures. Much of the detail as well as the
summary presented within this text can be found in Exhibit D that highlights
the end results of operations for the City in 2010.

» The Financial Administrators of the City have implemented a modified approach
towards valuing its infrastructure. This approach includes the establishment
of condition statements for much of the City’s infrastructure and a plan of
capital actions to maintain and improve assets in accordance with prudent
financial practices.

» The City has also implemented infrastructure management and measurement tools
as a result of these standards. The City has implemented and integrated a
full depreciation basis of all capital infrastructures in a further effort to
measure the ability of appropriately maintaining the existing infrastructure
as well as accounting for future needs.

The Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis is intended to provide an introduction to the City’'s
basic financial statements, which are comprised of three major components: 1)
City-Wide Financial Statements, 2) Fund Financial Statements, and 3) Notes to the
Financial Statements. Supplementary information to the basic financial statement
is also provided to fulfill mandatory requirements and clarification to the base
report.

The City-wide reports are designed to show the City as a sum of its significant
fund activities. The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide
information about the government-type and business-type activities of the whole
City, presenting both as an aggregate view of City department finances and a
longer-term view of those finances.

Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well
as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at
the City's most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total
in one column. For the City of Caribou, the General Fund is the most significant
fund.



City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

City-Wide Financial Statements

The City-wide financial statements present the financial picture of the City from
the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting,
similar in manner to private sector accounting statements. The statements present
governmental activities and enterprise type activities separately. The enterprise
activities are those services provided by the governmental unit that are largely
supported by fees charged for the service or revenues generated by the performance
of such activity. These statements also include all assets of the City (including
infrastructure) as well as the liabilities with certain interfund activities
eliminated.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on the City’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. These
statements are used as tools to assess the trends in the City’'s overall financial
health allowing the reader an indication of improving or deteriorating financial
resources. The capital assets reported under the non-current assets are based upon
historical values less the total amount of depreciation accumulated to date. The
City has implemented the modified approach for infrastructure assets allowing this
statement to yield a more reflective position of the actual maintenance of the
City’s capital assets.

The Statement of Activities presents information demonstrating how the City's net
assets changed during the last calendar year on a department-by-department basis.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the activity occurs, regardless
of the timing of the related cash flow relevant to the event. Therefore, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
a change in cash in future fiscal periods.

Both of these statements within the City-wide financials distinguish between
governmental-type functions, principally supported by taxes, and intergovernmental
revenues for the City. These activities are separated from those enterprise
activities or business-type activities whose functions and activities are primarily
supported by user fees and charges generated from performing the related activities
within the City. Governmental Activities for Caribou are defined as general
government, community development, health and sanitation, public works, protection,
insurance and retirement, recreation, library, County tax, general assistance,
education (School), Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Section 8 housing, capital
projects and other activities. Enterprise activities, or business-type activities
are the ambulance operations.

Historically, the Caribou School Department was reported separately throughout the
statements for the City of Caribou as a Department. However, on July 1, 2009 the
Caribou School Department consolidated with Limestone and Stockholm School
Departments to form Eastern Aroostook Regional School Unit (RSU) #39. 2010 is the
first year absent any School expenses or revenue with only the educational
appropriation authorized by referendum vote made part of the statements. There is
the extraordinary expenditure the reader should note to the RSU #39 transferring a
prior fund balance expressed as an extraordinary transfer in Exhibit B.

B



City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are a grouping of related accounts that are used to
maintain control over the resources that have been segregated through the budgetary
process for specific activities or objectives. The City of Caribou utilizes fund
accounting practices to ensure compliance with finance-related legal requirements
as well as performance measures to monitor activity throughout the year. BAll of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are synonymous with the activities reported as governmental
activities under the City-wide financial statements. The governmental funds define
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are further available. These funds use modified accrual accounting to measure the
cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed shorter-term view of the City’s
general government operations and the basic services they provide. Governmental
fund information aids in determining whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs and
services. The differences in the governmental funds statements and those of the
City-wide statements are defined in the reconciliation statements as part of the
audit.

Proprietary funds are those revenues gained from activities and services that are
primarily supported by user fees or charges for those related activities. The City
maintains one proprietary fund, the Ambulance Service. This activity is maintained
as an enterprise account and is reported separately to better demonstrate the cash
flows and net of operational activity that is generated from the services
throughout the year.

Notes to the financial statements are provided as additional information that is
essential for the reader’s full understanding of the data provided within the
statements. The notes include schedules of significant activities including
Property Taxes, Other Revenues, Capital Outlays, Non-Capital Outlays, Trust and
Agency Funds, Fixed Assets and Other Expenses. Schedules are also included
detailing the receipt and expenditures of State and Federal Financial Assistance.
These schedules detail the total anticipated receipts, receipts and expenditures to
date and the outstanding balances not yet encumbered at the time of the statements.

The Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A) reports total net assets of $15,572,097
from the combined operations of the Governmental and Business-type activity. This
aggregate amount consists of total assets less depreciation and liabilities for
these combined operations. Exhibit A is delineated into Assets, Current and Non-
current, Liabilities, Current and Non-current, and Net Assets, Investments in
Capital Assets and Unrestricted.

3 i



City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

The reader should refer to Table I as a comparison of Exhibit A of the net changes
from 2009 to 2010. Total Current Assets decreased significantly in 2010 primarily
due to the extraordinary transfer of prior fund balances from the City’s School
Department to RSU #39, pursuant to MRSA Title 20-A §1463 (3), in the form of cash.
Total Current Assets decreased by $1,567,346, of which the extraordinary transfer
to RSU #39 was $1,749,682. BAbsent this extraordinary transfer, management would
have noted a net gain in Total Current Assets of $182,336 and a positive increase
of cash of $248,994. Taxes Receivable increased by $68,756 or 8.2% from prior
year. OQutstanding taxes represented 13.3% as compared to 12.4% for 2009. Notes
and Other Receivables decreased by a combined total of $307,500 and Other Current
Assets increased by $172,086, a positive adjustment offsetting the transfer to the
RSU #39 and increase in taxes receivable.

Table I indicates Current Liabilities decreased by $22,640 with positive reductions
in Accounts Payable and Deferred Taxes, but an increase in Deferred Compensation
due to an increase in Compensated Absences. Noncurrent Liabilities decreased by
$279,566 as the Note Payable for the construction of the Wellness Center only the
current portion remaining for 2011. Net Assets decreased for 2010 as there was an
extraordinary credit from the RSU #39 to the City in 2009, returned to the RSU in
the form of cash in 2010. Total Net Assets, Total Assets less Current and
Noncurrent Liabilities decreased by $1,458,938 for the year. Management recognizes
this significant change as being a one-time event and is reflective of the transfer
of prior fund balances due from the former City School department to RSU #39 as
required under State law.

The Statement of Activities Exhibit B combines the Expenses, Charges for Services,
and Revenues associated with each governmental activity and business-type activity
on a department by department basis. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the actiwvity occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow
relevant to the event. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in a change in cash in future fiscal
periods. Expenses by governmental activity are displayed graphically for
comparison for both 2010 and 2009 as Government Activities Expenses. These pie
charts should aid the reader to make a visual comparison in changes from 2009 to
2010.

Iv



City of Caribou,

Maine

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended December 31,

Table I provides data for the Governmental Activities for the years ended

Current Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Taxes receivable
Notes receivable
Other receivables
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred compensation
Deferred taxes
Current portion note payable

Noncurrent Liabilities
Note payable, net of current portion

Net Assets
Investment in capital assets, net of
related debt
Unrestricted net assets

TOTAL NET ASSETS

UNAUDITED

Table I
Net Assets

2010

2010 and 20068,

2010 2009
$ 3,309,708 S 4,810,396
898, 345 829,589
330,653 452,184
361,085 547,054
274,053 101,967
5,173,844 6,741,190

12,166,339

12,360,137

17,340,183

19,101,327

108,739 142,951
705,251 682,941
674,530 685, 268
278,566 279,566
1,768,086 1,790,726
= 279,566

11,886,773
3,685,324

11,801,005
5,230,030

$15,572,097

$ 17,031,035




City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

2010 Government Activity Expense

@ General Government

@ Public Works
3% O Protection
4%, O Education
B Recreation
o County tax

@ Chamber of Commerce

O Irsurance and retirement

m Library

@ Other

2009 Government Activity Expense

B General Government
@ Public Works
O Protection

2%

4% o Education
B Recreation
@ County tax

@ Chamber of Commerce

B Ireurance and retirement

26% @ Library

m Other
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City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

The reader should refer to Table II as a comparison of the changes in Net Assets
from 2009 to 2010. Total City net Expenditures for Governmental and Business-type
activities combined was $9, 655,461, as compared to $10,061,269 for 2009. The major
components of the $405,808 reduction in Expenditures were due to an overall net
reduction for all categories except Education of $24,636. Education decreased by
$381,172 as per the transfer credit and ARRA funding. Capital Projects were also
reduced by $117, 371 taking advantage of prior year’s favorable project expendi-
tures, reductions in balances forward, and a reduced scope of investments for the
year.

For 2010 the total General Revenues were $9,846,031 as compared to $9,423,607 for
2009, an increase of $422,424. Federal and State Assistance decreased by $306,823
wholly comprised of losses in State Revenue Sharing and Urban Rural Improvements
Program (MDOT) pass through funding. Management recognizes these significant
losses of broad based taxation, non-property tax, as an extremely negative trend
that will impact property taxation and service level provisions in future years.
Other Revenues increased by $672,504 with the one-time dividend return from Tri-
Community Landfill being $510,026 of the total. Management recognizes the singular
contribution of this revenue that will not be available in subseguent years. The
net change in these non-property tax revenues buffered impacts to Taxes for 2010,
increasing by just $53,179. Management notes the impact to property taxation in
2010 due to the significant combined losses of non-property tax revenues as
reflective of the economic downturn affecting the entire nation that started in
mid-2008. This is foreseen as a trend that may continue to impact the City for
another 1 teo 3 years. Pie charts follow to give the reader a visual indication of
these sources of City Revenues for 2010 as compared to 2009.

Table II alsoc compares the change in Net Assets being a positive $190,570 from
Governmental Activities in 2010, as compared to a negative $637,662 in 2009. The
extraordinary transfer between the City and RSU #39 is listed as a credit to the
City in 2009, and a debit in 2010 of $1,749,682. This transaction was comprised of
cash only. Net change from Governmental Activities is a negative $1,559,112.

For Business-type activities, Table II shows the Ambulance Service expending
$1,355,718 while generating revenues of $1,455,892 from billings producing a net
income of $100,174 for 2010 compared to a net income of $123,501 in 2009. The
Ambulance Service used $66,764 from the general fund at year end due to an increase
in receivables balance at year end. The Net change in Assets was still a positive
$33,410 for the year. See Exhibit H for full details of this Business-type
Activity. The Service receives no net support from property taxation.

VII



City of Caribou, Maine

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended December 31,

UNAUDITED

2010

Table II shows the changes in net assets for the years 2010 and 2009.

Table II

Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities:

General Revenues

Taxes
Federal and state assistance
Excise taxes
Other revenues

Total general revenues

neral Expenses, net related revenues
General Government
Public Works

Protection

Education

Recreation

County tax

Chamber of Commerce
Insurance and retirement
Library

Capital projects

Other

Total general activities expenses

Change in net assets before extraordinary item

Transfer (to)/from (RSU #39) Caribou School Department
Change in Net Assets from general governmental activities

Business-type Activities:
Revenues
Charges for services
Operational grants

Total business-type activity revenues
Expenses
Change in Net Assets from business-type activities
Change in Net Assets from governmental activities

Net Assets - January 1
Prior period adjustment

Net Assets - January 1 (restated)

Net Assets - December 31

$ 6,749,398

$ 6,696,219

1,019,736 1,326,559
1,156,557 1,152,993
920,340 247,836
9,846,031 9,423,607
429,073 478,364
1,766,901 1,831,721
1,903,987 1,898,848
2,609,215 2,990,387
662,738 552,549
354,010 351,859
147,500 155,000
474,185 411,590
287,170 269,745
(67,070) 50,301
1,087,742 1,070,885
9,655,461 10,061,269
180,570 (637,662)
(1,749,682) 1,749,682
(1,559,112) 1,112,020
1,455,892 1,350,713
- 118,057
1,455,892 1,468,770
1,355,718 1,345,269
100,174 123,501
(1,458,938) 1,235,521

17,031,035

15,840,868
(45,354)

17,031,035

15,795,514

$15,572,097

$17,031,035




City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

2010 Government Activity Revenue

7%

Property taxes
Restricted grants
Charges for services
Excise taxes
Urrestricted grants
Cther

53%

2009 Government Activity Revenue

Property taxes
Restricted grants
Charges for services
Excise taxes
Unrestricted grants
Other
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City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

Management has produced Table III to further assist the reader in assessing the
major changes in Revenues for the City comparing the 2010 current year to that of
2009. Total City Revenues for 2010 were $12,826,493, an increase of $364,610
compared to 2009. Management recognizes the need to reduce revenue from property
taxes by maximizing other revenues provided charges for services are reasonable and
customary or fall within State allowances. Restricted Grants decreased by $99, 916
as did Unrestricted Grants fell by $306,823, the greatest reductions being in State
Revenue Sharing and Highway Funds (URIP). The State Legislature reduced Revenue
Sharing percentages as well as reduced the remaining fund, already reduced due to
economic activity, by over $40 million dollars. Positive offsets were seen in
Excise Tax $3,564 and Other Revenue increased by $610,366, $510,026 from Tri-
Community Landfill dividends. Net increase in property taxation was $53,179 for
the year. A graphic representation has been provided.



City of Caribou, Maine

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

Table III shows the percentage of revenue sources for governmental activities for the
years 2010 and 2009.

Table III
Percentage of Revenue Sources

2010 2009
2010 (by 2009 (by
Revenues percentage) Revenues percentage)

Governmental Revenues:
Property taxes S 6,749,398 53% 5 6,696,219 54%
Restricted grants 1,299,394 10% 1,399,310 11%
Charges for services 1,681,068 13% 1,576,828 13%
Excise taxes 1:156; 557 8% 1,152,993 9%
Unrestricted grants 1,019,736 8% 1; 326; 5508 11%
Other 920,340 _1% 309,974 2%
Total Government Revenues 512,826,493 100% 512,461,883 100%



City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

Management has produced Table IV to illustrate any significant changes within the
Governmental Expenditures from 2009 to 2010 as a percentage of total expenditures
for each year followed by pie charts illustrating the same. Total Governmental
Expenses decreased by $378,157 primarily due to a reduction in Educational
assessment of $381,172 due to the influx of ARRA funding, a one time occurrence.
The net increase of $3,015 from all other Governmental Expenses decreased this
education reduction producing the resulting net. Despite the positive reduction in
overall expenditures, very little change in the percentage by category is reported
for 2010 with the exception of Education and Recreation.

XIT



City of Caribou, Maine

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED
Table IV shows the percentage of expenses for governmental activities for the years 2010
and 2009.

Table IV
Percentage of Expenses

2010 2009
2010 (by 2009 (by
Expenses percentage) Expenses percentage)

Governmental Expenses:
General Government 5 538,353 4% S 596,019 5%
Public Works 1,924,437 15% 1,974,071 15%
Protection 2,054,275 16% 2,077,496 16%
Education 2;609,215 21% 2,990,387 23%
Recreation 153,222 6% 647,766 5%
County tax 354,010 3% 351,859 3%
Chamber of Commerce 147,500 1% 155,000 1%
Insurance and retirement 474,195 4% 411,590 3%
Library 287,170 2% 269,745 2%
Capital projects 76,647 1% 115,508 1%
Ambulance 1,355,718 11% 1,345,269 10%
Other 1,961,007 16% 1,979,196 16%
Total Governmental Expenses $12,535,749 100% $12,913, 906 100%

XIIT



City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

A balance sheet of the City's Governmental Fund is provided in Exhibit C. Total
Assets ended 2010 at $4,957,755, a reduction of $1,535,652. Total Liabilities
ended the year at $776,651, a decrease of $26,545 having positive decreases of both
accounts payable and deferred property taxes. Fund Balances ended 2010 at
$4,181,104, a decrease of $1,509,107. Of this reduction, $1,060,524 is from
Capital Outlays in excess of appropriations, $874,841 being for RSU #39, and
$86,942 being for Debt Service (Wellness Center), see Schedules 3a & 3b. Further
Fund Balance reduction was from Non-capital Outlays, see Schedule 4, of $91,7809.

Exhibit D is a reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance for the Governmental Funds, excluding business-type funds,
for 2010. Exhibit D summarizes the City, Section 8 Housing, and Special Revenue
Funds comprising the Total Governmental Funds. The major components are summarized
as follows:

Exhibit D indicates that Total Governmental Revenues available in 2010 were
$11,464,274 and Expenditures were $10,966,827, an excess of Revenue over Expense of
a positive $497,447. This positive gain does not include the business-type
activity of the Ambulance contributing $100,174 for a combined increase to Fund
Balance of $597,621. Fund Balance was reduced by $322,733 for Debt Service
(Wellness Center) and due to the Extraordinary Item, transfer to RSU #39, of
$1,749,682. The net served to decrease the Fund Balance in 2010 by $1,463,753.
Fund Balance ending December 31, 2010 was $4,181,104 after a Prior-Period
Adjustment of $45,354, see Note 12, due to uncollectible taxes stemming from
commercial property bankruptcies.

Further reconciliation of the Government Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances for the City-wide Statement of Activities is displayed
in Exhibit F.

Exhibits G, H, and I are Proprietary Funds and all pertain to the business-type
activity of the Ambulance stating Net Assets, changes in fund Net Assets, and Cash
Flows due to operations respectively.

The Reader may refer to Supplemental 1 as the best report comparing the City’s
Governmental Fund and Business-type Fund activity for the year as they compared to
budget. Total Expenditures for the year, excluding Ambulance, were $10,195,134,
$128,542 less than budget. Revenues, excluding Ambulance, were $10,246,954, $2,964
less than budget. Revenues exceeded Expenditures by $51,820 for the year. Total
Other Sources of $603,933 came from capital outlays, transfer from prior year, and
ambulance fund. Debt service of $351,675 reduced the positive increase in Fund
Balance. The resulting net positive increase in Fund Balance General Fund from
Governmental Operations was a positive $351,675.

The Ambulance Service on Supplemental 1 had Total Revenues of $1,743,229, $112,826
less than budget, and Total Expenditures of $1,676,465, $73,159 greater than
budget. The Ambulance Service had a net of operations of just $66,764 for the year
as compared to a budgeted $252,749, a difference of $186,003. A portion of this
reduction from operations was due to a drop in call volumes, while an estimated
$68,000 stemmed from Medicare reimbursements authorized for payment but not fully
funded by the Federal government. The City expects to receive these funds in the
next calendar year. The City’s net of operations, change in General Fund and
Ambulance Service Fund Balances combined for 2010 was a positive $351,675.
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City of Caribou, Maine

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

UNAUDITED

A more complete understanding of the capital outlay is summarized in Note 9 of this
Audit. Note 9 indicates that the City’s capital assets net of depreciation
decreased by $166,202 in total. Additions to vehicles and equipment totaled
$161,926 while depreciation across land improvements, buildings, vehicles, and
equipment totaled $311,912, depreciation being greater than additions by $149, 986.
Management recognizes this relationship as one of timing, the year additions are
purchased versus depreciation on the entire list of assets. Retirements of
vehicles and equipment totaled $291,879 for the year as compared to the
depreciation of $275,663 for the same. Management recognizes the differential of
$16,216 as documenting the very close maintenance of the replacement and schedule
of vehicles and equipment. Note 9 also indicates that the Business-type Activity
of the Ambulance had net depreciation of $27,596 for the year as the anticipated
remount of Ambulance Unit #25 was delayed to 2011.

The City of Caribou continues to be fiscally strong. The City strives towards
greater participation in currently regionalized services such as Ambulance, Fire,
Protections Services, Schools, back office functions, dispatch, and other areas as
possible. The City continues to maximize non-property tax revenue sources to lower
the overall burden on property taxation. Management recognizes the future
difficulties of funding municipal operations as Federal and State distributions
continue to decline for the foreseeable near term with potential increased burden
upon property taxation.

Management concludes this section of the 2010 Audit with the continued pledge of
applying ecconomies of scale, near zero based budgeting practices, regionalized
services, best practices, and efficiencies to minimize these pending impacts. This
concludes the Management Discussion and Analysis Statement for the calendar year of
2010. A complete copy of the 2010 audited financials for the City of Caribou may
be viewed at the Caribou City Office, 25 High Street during normal business hours
of 8:00AM to 5:00PM Monday through Friday.
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CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT &
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activity Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments (Note 7) S 3,246,402 S - $ 3,246,402
Investments 63,306 = 63,306
Uncollected taxes 799, 635 - 799, 635
Tax acquired property 98,710 = 98,710
Accounts receivable 122,629 180,025 312,654
Pledges receivable (Note 3) 143,431 . 143,431
Allowance for uncollectibles {95,000) = ({95, 000)
Inventories 18,541 - 18,541
Prepaid expenses 57,401 - 57,401
Notes receivable (Notes 5 and 6) 330, 653 - 330,653
Restricted cash 196,235 - 196,235
Other assets 1,876 - 1,876
4,983,819 190,025 5,173,844
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets (Note 9)
Non-depreciable 5, 901,433 = 5,901,433
Depreciable 11,270,207 807, 964 12,078,171
Less allowance for depreciation (5,450, 265) (363,000) (5,813,265)
11,721,375 444, 964 12,166,339
Total assets 16,705,194 634,989 17,340,183
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 66,294 = 66,294
Accrued payroll 29, TI2 = 29,772
Accrued interest 3,580 - 3,580
Escrow 38,865 - 38,865
Deferred revenues - property taxes 674,530 - 674,530
Current portion, notes payable 279,566 = 279,566
Compensated absences 585,718 89,761 675,479
Total current liabilities 1,678,325 89,761 1,768,086
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES (Note 10)
Notes payable, net of current portion = = 5
Total liabilities 1,678,325 89,761 1,768,086
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of
related debt 11,441,809 444,964 11,886,773
Restricted for:
Special revenue funds 439,814 439,814
Unrestricted 3,145,246 100,264 3,245,510
Total net assets $15,026,869 $ 545,228 515,572,097

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR_THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

EXHIBIT B

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

Program Net (Expenses) Revenue
Revenues and Changes in MNet Assets
Operating Capital Business-
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental type
- i} e ir i Pl i TE
Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 538,353 § 109,280 $ = 3 = $  (429,073) 5 (429,073)
Community development 75,600 - - ] (75,600) (75, 600)
Health and sanitation 266,216 - - - (266,216} (266,216)
Public works 1,924,437 - 157,536 - {1,766,901) {1,766, 901)
Protection 2,054,275 103,138 47,150 - (1,903,987) (1,903,987)
Insurance and retirement 474,195 - - - (474,195) (474,195)
Recreation 753,222 - - 90, 484 (662,738) (662, 738)
Library 287,170 - - " (287,170} (287,170}
County tax 354,010 - - - (354,010) (354,010}
General assistance 110,233 - - - (110,233) (110, 233)
Education 2,609,215 - - = (2,609,215} (2,609,215)
Chamber of Commerce and Industry 147,500 Lo - - (147, 500) (147, 500)
Section B Housing 930,940 12,758 860,507 - (57,675) (57,675)
Capital projects 76,647 - - 143,717 67,070 67,070
Interest expense 20,933 - - - (20,933) {20,933}
Other 557,085 - - - {557, 085) {557, 085)
Total governmental activities 11,180,031 225,176 1,065,193 234,201 {9,655,461) {9,655, 461)
Business-type Activity:
Ambulance service 1,355,718 1,455,892 i N $100,174 100,174
Total City $12,535,749 $1,681,068 $ 1,065,193 ] 234,201 {9,655,461) 100,174 {9,555, 287)
General revenues:
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purpocses 6,520,766 - 6,520,766
Homestead reimbursement and other property tax related 219,164 - 219,164
Supplemental taxes 9,468 - 9,468
Excise 1,156,557 i L E56;: 5597
Interest on delinquent taxes and lien fees 69,520 - 69,520
Payments in lieu of taxes 44,268 - 44,268
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 1,019,736 - 1,019,736
Tri-community distribution 510,026 - 510,026
Interest on deposits and notes 20,947 - 20,947
Cable TV franchise 57,348 - 57,348
Miscellaneous revenues 218,231 - 218,231
Net transfers governmental and business-type funds from operations 66, 764 (66, 764) =
Subtotal, general revenues and transfers 9,912,795 (66,764) 9,846,031
Change in net assets before extraordinary item 257,334 33,410 290,744
Extraordinary item:
Transfer to RSU #3239 (1,749,682) = (1,749,682)
Change in net assets (1,492,348} 33,410 (1,458, 938)
NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1, 2010 16,564,571 511,818 17,076, 389
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (Note 12) {45,354) = (45,354)
NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1, 2010 (RESTATED) 16,519,217 511,818 17;:031,:035
NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2010 £15,026,869 $545,228 §15,572,097




CITY OF CARIBOU,

AS

ASSETS

Cash and temporary investments
(Note 7)

Investments
Uncollected taxes
Tax acquired property
Accounts receivable
Pledges receivable (Note 3)
Allowance for uncollectibles
Due from other funds
Inventories
Notes receivable
Restricted cash
Other assets

(Notes 5 and 6)

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Escrow
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue - property
taxes

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent
years' expenditures -
Capital (Schedule 3)
Non-capital (Schedule 4)

Undesignated, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Deferred property taxes

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund
balances

MAINE

EXHIBIT C
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
F DECEMBER 31, 2010
Special
Section 8 Revenue Total
Housing Funds Governmental
General Fund Program {Schedule 5) Funds
52,945,882 5 59,734 S 240,786 $3,246,402
63,306 - - 63,306
798, 635 - = 799, 635
98,710 - - 98,710
122,629 - - 122,629
143,431 - - 143,431
(95, 000) N - (95,000)
S L3387 - - 31,337
18,541 - - 18,541
317,045 - 13,608 330,653
- 196,235 - 196,235
= 1,876 - 1,876
54,445,516 $257, 845 5 254,394 54,957,755
S 29,696 S 22823 - 5 31,919
- 38,865 - 38,865
- - 31,337 Fl 33T
674,530 - - 674,530
704,226 41,088 F1n 337 776,651
1,087,210 - 3,523 1,090,733
621,533 - - 621,533
1,907,443 - - 1,907,443
- 216,757 219,534 436,291
125,104 - - 125,104
3,741,290 2657157 223,057 4,181,104
$4,445,516 $257,845 5 254,394 $4,957,755

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT D
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Special
Section B Revenue Total
Housing Funds Governmental
General Fund Program {Schedule 6) Funds
REVENUES
Local property taxes $ 6,535,870 S - S - 5 6,535,870
Homestead reimbursement 219,164 = - 215,164
Supplemental taxes 9,468 = - 9,468
Abatements (15,104) = - (15,104)
Federal assistance 8,351 860,507 143,717 1,012:5875
State assistance 1,149,018 . 61,141 1,210,160
Other revenues 2,477,383 13,268 1,480 2,492,141
TOTAL REVENUES 10,384,151 873175 206,348 11,464,274
EXPENDITURES
General government 589,762 159,583 - 749,345
Community development 75,600 - - 75,600
Health and sanitation 266,216 = - 266,216
Public works 1,886,643 - - 1,886,643
Protection 1,944,462 - - 1,944,462
Insurance and retirement 474,195 = - 474,195
Recreation 664,030 - = 664,030
Library 281,661 - = 281,661
County tax 354,010 - T 354,010
General assistance 110,233 771,357 - 881,590
Education 2,609,215 - - 2,609,215
Interest expense 24,512 - - 24,512
Chamber of Commerce and Industry 147,500 - = 147,500
Construction and improvements - - 76,647 76,647
Other (Schedule 2) 531,201 = - 531,201
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,959,240 930,940 76,647 10,966,827
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES (EXPENDITURES
OVER REVENUES) 424,911 (57,165) 129,701 497,447
OTHER SOURCES
Transfer from ambulance reserve 66,764 - - 66,764
Transfer from other funds 44,451 = — 44,451
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES 111,215 - = 111,215
OTHER USES
Transfer to other funds - = 43,167 43,167
Payments on long-term debt 279,566 - = 279,566
TOTAL OTHER USES 279,566 - 43,167 32433
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Transfer to RSU #39 (1,749,682) = = (1,749,682)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (1,493,122) (57,165) 86,534 (1,463,753)
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1, 2010 5,279,766 273,922 136,523 5,690,211
PRIOR-PERICD ADJUSTMENT (Note 12) (45, 354) = 5 (45,354)
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1, 2010 (RESTATED) 5,234,412 273,922 136,523 5,644,857
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2010 $ 3,741,290 $216,757 $ 223,057 $ 4,181,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT E
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
WITH THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Total fund balance - governmental funds (Exhibit C) S 4,181,104
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as assets in governmental funds:
The cost of capital assets is 17,171, 640
Accumulated depreciation is 5,450,265
11,721,375
Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable
from current financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds:

Notes payable (279,566)
Prepaid expenses 57,401
Accounts payable (34,375)
Accrued payroll (29,772)

(3,580)

Accrued interest

Compensated absences (585,718)

Total net assets - governmental activities (Exhibit A) 515,026,869

The accomparying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE
EXHIBIT F
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES WITH THE CITY-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE Y R 31, 2010

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit D) $(1,463,753)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in
governmental funds as expenditures. However, for governmental
activities those costs are shown in the statement of net assets
and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreci-
ation expense in the statement of activities. This is the amount
by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays in the period.

Capital outlays 161,926
Depreciation expense (311,912)
(149, 986)
In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of fixed
assets is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the entire
proceeds from the sale increases financial resources. Therefore,
the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance
by the depreciated value of assets sold. (16,216)

Expenses paid prior to the period due are accounted for under the
non-allocated method and are, therefore, reported as expenses in
the current period in governmental funds. However, for govern-
mental activities, these amounts are recorded as prepaid expenses
and are expensed when the item is consumed. 5,407

Only the revenue from other sources that is budgeted to be received in
the current year is recognized in the governmental funds as revenue.
Revenue is recognized when earned in the governmental activities.

Decrease in accounts receivable for governmental activities (78, 741)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the governmental
activities. 279,566

Compensation for accrued vacation and sick pay not yet paid is
accumulated using the governmental activities fund to the extent that
amounts would be paid to the employees upon retirement. These
funds are not accumulated for the governmental activities fund. (115;775)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Decrease in accrued payroll 44,045
Decrease in accrued interest payvable 3,579

Purchases for governmental funds are expensed under the purchase
method. Items are expensed as paid for. Purchases for govern-
mental activities are reported using the accrual method of
accounting. Therefore, expenses are recorded as they are
incurred and a corresponding payable is recorded for these
expenses. (474)

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B) $(1,452,348)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments (Note 7) 5 =
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $27,672 190,025
Total current assets 190,025
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Land, buildings and improvements 223,065
Vehicles and equipment 584,899
Total noncurrent assets 807, 964
Accumulated depreciation (363,000)
Net noncurrent assets 444,964
Total assets 634,989
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 89,761
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets : 444,964
Unrestricted 100, 264
Total net assets & 545,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT H
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
T YEAR ENDED DE R 31, 2010
Operating revenues
Fees 51,427,177
Less contractual allowances (281, 651)

Internal service -~ Caribou 83,120

Outside service - Other Municipalities 46,445

Veterans' Administration contracts 117,502

Billing services 47,177

Other 16,127

Total operating revenues 1,455,882
Cperating expenses

Salaries and benefits B30, 442

Transport expenses 270,751

Occupancy 36,481

Equipment and vehicle expense 54,161

Supplies and materials 14,125

Depreciation 69,901

Uncollectible €9, 797

Other 10,060

Total operating expenses 1,385,718
Operating income 100,174
OTHER SOURCES (USES)

Transfer to general fund (66,764)
Change in net assets 33,410
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1, 2010 511,818
TOTAL NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2010 $ 545,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT I
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
R THE YEAR ENDED D MBER 31, 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from fees 51,444,306
Cash payments for salaries and benefits (879,862)
Cash payments for transportation (270,751)
Cash payments for other operating costs (184,624)
Net cash provided by operating activities 109,069
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (42, 305)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance (to) general fund (66,764)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1, 2010 -
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31, 2010 $ =

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income $ 100,174
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 69,901
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables (11,586)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (49,420)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 109,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

EXHIBIT J
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Hospital Cemetery Library
Memorial Trust Trust Memorial
Total Funds Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash 5221,454 $45,990 51, 356 558,017 $116,0091
NET ASSETS
Undesignated $221,454 545,990 51,356 $58,017 $116,0091
CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR_THE R ENDED DECEMB 2010
Hospital Cemetery Library
Memorial Trust Trust Memorial
Total Funds Funds Funds Funds
INTEREST INCOME 5 6,758 5 1,045 5 7 5 2131 5. 3875
DEDUCTIONS
Expenses 4,025 - 25 - 4,000
Transfer to other funds 1,284 - - = 1,284
5,309 = 25 - 5,284
NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,449 1,045 (18) 2,131 (1,7089)
NET ASSETS - JANUARY 1 220,005 44,945 1,374 55,886 117,800
CASH AND NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31 $221,454 545,990 $1,356 $58,017 S$11e6,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Caribou, Maine incorporated and adopted its first charter in
1967, which allows for a Council-Manager form of government. The Council
consists of seven members elected by the voters with individual terms of
three years.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental units.
The authority establishing the standards for governmental accounting princi-
ples is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accompanying financial statements include all governmental and
expendable fiduciary fund types and account groups except for Cary Medical
Center and Caribou Utilities District. The financial statements of these
component units have been or are being audited and reported on by other
independent auditors.

The City of Caribou's basic financial statements include City-wide
statements, including a statement of net assets and a statement of
activities, and fund financial statements that provide a more detailed level
of financial information.

City-wide Financial Statements - The statement of net assets and the
statement of activities display information about the City as a whole. These
statements include the financial activities of the primary government, except
for fiduciary funds. These statements distinguish between those activities
of the City that are governmental and those that are considered business-type
activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activity of the City at year-end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each department or function of the City’s governmental
activities and for the business-type activity of the City. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated with a service or department and,
therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient for the goods or services offered by
the department, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital reguirements of a particular department and interest
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular
department. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent
to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenue of the City.

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the City segregates
transactions related to certain City functions or activities in separate
funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the City at this more detailed level. The focus of
governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds.

Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by

type.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or account
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. Each fund
is accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets and account for the governmental resources allocated to them for
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CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

the purpose of carrying on specific activities in accordance with laws,
regulations or other restrictions. The various funds are summarized by type
in the financial statements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS )
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions
typically are financed.

General Fund - The general fund accounts for financial resources in use
for general types of operations. This is a budgeted fund, and any fund
balances are considered as resources available for use. Revenues are
derived primarily from property and other local taxes, state and federal
distributions, licenses, permits, charges for services, and interest
income. A significant part of the General Fund's revenues are used
principally to finance the operations of the City of Caribou.

Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for revenues derived from
specific sources that are restricted by legal and regulatory provisions
to finance specific activities. The special revenue fund is the
aggregate of other funds for financial reporting purposes.

PROPRIETARY FUND

The proprietary fund is used to account for activities that are similar to
those often found in the private sector. All assets, liabilities, equities,
revenues, and expenses relating to the government's business activity are
accounted for through a proprietary fund. Enterprise funds may be used to
account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods or services. Relative to its proprietary fund, the City has elected to
apply all relevant Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements
issued on or after November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict
with GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets.
The City's only fiduciary funds are agency funds. The City's agency funds
account for trust funds donated to the City for those purposes.

Measurement Focus

City-wide Financial Statements - The City-wide financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. All assets and
liabilities associated with the operation of the City are included in the
statement of net assets.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using
a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the
manner in which the governmental activities of the City-wide financial
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements,
therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the City-wide statements and the
statements for governmental funds.

Like the City-wide statements, the proprietary fund is accounted for on

a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all
liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on
the statement of net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net
total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how
the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary
activity.

Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the
financial records and reported on the financial statements. City-wide
financial statements, together with proprietary and fiduciary funds are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. On the
accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of
accounting arise in the recognition of revenue and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives
and receives essentially equal value, are recorded on the accrual basis
when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and
become available. Available means that the resources will be collected
within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year. For the
City, available means expected to be received within 60 days of fiscal
year—end. Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits
and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash.
General property taxes, self-assessed taxes and investment earnings are
recorded when they become both measurable and available. Expenditures are
recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for expenditures for debt service, prepaid
expenses and other long-term obligations, which are recognized when paid.

Nonexchange transactions, in that the City receives value without
directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching
requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used for
a specified purpose, and expenditure reguirements, in which the resources
are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual
basis, revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before
it can be recognized.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in
net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures
are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund
liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for
goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are
recorded to reserve that portion of fund balance, is utilized in the
governmental fund types. In the general fund, for budgetary purposes
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end except for that portion related to
encumbered amounts. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

reservations of fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent
year. The encumbrances are subject to re-appropriation by the City council
in any succeeding fiscal year.

Budgetary Data

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for all
funds of the City. Annual operating budgets are adopted each year through
passage of an annual budget ordinance and amended as required for the
General Fund. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
these budgets use the same accounting basis to reflect actual revenues and
expenditures. Budgets for the Special Revenue Funds are made on a project
basis, sometimes spanning over more than one fiscal year. Budgetary
contrel is exercised at the departmental level or by project. ALl
unencumbered budget appropriations, except reserve budgets, lapse at the
end of each fiscal year.

The general operating fund is legally required to be budgeted and
appropriated. The major document prepared is the tax budget, which
separates these funds by function and estimated appropriation needed to
fund each function. The tax budget demonstrates a need for existing or
increased tax rates. This budget is approved by the Caribou City Council
and may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in
revenues or expenditures are identified by the City. The amounts reported
as the original budget amounts in the budgetary statements (Supplement 1)
reflect the amounts in the legally adopted budget. Changes, if any, are
reflected in the final budget column.

Cash and Temporary Investments

Available cash is deposited in interest-bearing accounts to as great a
degree as possible. These residual investments are classified for
reporting purposes as cash. Earnings from these investments are reported
by the applicable funds. The City's policy is to invest in regional banks
and federal securities and to insure the funds to as great a degree as
possible. Deposits with a maturity of three months or less are included in
cash and temporary investments for financial reporting purposes.

Monies for all funds, including the proprietary fund, are maintained in
a pool. Individual funds are maintained through the City's accounting
records to allow proper segregation of cash for each fund.

Investments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the City's general policy is to
report money market investments and short-term participating interest-
earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report non-
participating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based
measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly
affected by the impairment of the credit outstanding of the issuer or by
other factors, it is reported at fair wvalue. 2All other investments are
reported at fair wvalue unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a
higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments, which have a
remaining term of three months or less at time of purchase. The term "non-
participating" means that the investment's value does not vary with
market interest rate changes.
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Property Taxes

Taxes are levied as of April 1 and are used to finance the operations of
the City for the calendar budget year beginning January 1. Taxes are
committed for collection on July 1 and are due and payable on or before
September 30. In accordance with Maine law, taxes not collected within
eight months following the date of commitment are secured by liens.

The City has adopted the standard established by GASB No. 33 regarding the
recognition of property taxes. The criterion for this standard is to
recognize property tax revenue as it becomes both "measurable and available™.
Measurable is defined as the amount that the City can reasonably expect to
receive of the property taxes assessed for the current year. Available is
defined as the amount that will be collected of current and past due taxes
during the current period or expected to be collected shortly thereafter to
pay current liabilities. For the purposes of this report, 60 days is used as
the collection period after year-end. Accordingly, a liability has been
established on the combined balance sheet for the taxes considered
collectible but not available for current liabilities.

Allowance for uncollectible receivables

Taxes receivable are recorded at estimated net realizable value.
Therefore, an allowance for uncollectible taxes of $95,000 has been
established. Tax revenue 1is recorded net of the allowance for uncollectible
taxes.

The ambulance service also reports accounts receivable net of the allowance
for uncollectible accounts of $27,682. Revenues have been netted to reflect
the allowance.

Prepaid Expense

Payments made benefiting future periods under the governmental fund basis
are recorded under the non-allocated method and are currently expensed as
paid. Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond
December 31, 2010, are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method
for City-wide activities. A current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded
at the time of the purchase and an expense is reported in the year in which
services are consumed.

Inventories
The City of Caribou inventories are valued at cost. Cost is determined on

the first-in, first-out basis.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to
activities reported in the proprietary funds. These assets generally result
from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in
the governmental activities column of the City-wide statement of net assets
but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type
activities column of the City-wide statement of net assets and in the
respective funds.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost)
and updated for additions and retirements during the year. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value as of the date received.
The City maintains a capitalization threshold of $3,000 for all assets other
than infrastructure assets. The capitalization threshold for infrastructure
assets is $50,000. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal main-
tenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following useful lives:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 20-50 years N/A
Furniture and Equipment 5-20 years 10-15 years
Vehicles 8-10 years N/A

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 34, an extended period of deferral (until
2006) is available before the requirement to record and depreciate
infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items)
acquired before the implementation date becomes effective. The City
developed an implementation to determine the value of and included
infrastructure cost in 2006. Infrastructure acquired prior to December 2002
has not been recorded. GASB Statement No. 34 requires the reporting of new
infrastructure expenditures effective with the beginning of the implementa-
tion year (2002).

The City has elected to account for their infrastructure assets using the
modified approach as opposed to depreciating them. See Supplement 2 for
further details.

Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in
the City-wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and
long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are reported on the
proprietary fund financial statements.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances
of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation
adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses consist of amounts generated directly from
the primary activity of the City’s proprietary funds. For the City, these
sales are ambulance service charges. For the School, these revenues are
sales of food services. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Budgetary Compariscon Schedule for the General Fund (Supplement 1)
presents comparisons of legally adopted budgets with actual data on a
budgetary basis. This differs from the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance (Exhibit D) since accounting principles applied
for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly
from those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. A reconciliation of timing differences in
fund balance is presented below:
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(2)

General Fund

Fund Balance (budgetary basis)

Supplement 1 $3,597,859
Plus: Pledges receivable 143,431
Fund Balance

(GAAP basis) - Exhibit C $3,741,290

Designations of Fund Balance

Designations of unreserved fund balances in governmental funds indicate
City management's tentative plans for use of financial resources in a future
period. Any designation held open for three years without any activity is
considered dormant and is closed into fund balance.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

City employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their
length of employment and their department's individual contract negotiated
with the City. Administration and all other employees not under a depart-
mental contract receive twelve days sick leave per year and one to five weeks
of vacation depending on the number of years of service. Unused vacation and
sick pay are accumulated at the employee's current rate of pay and is
included as a liability in the net assets of the City-wide financial state-
ments.

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLANS

Maine State Retirement System

Employees of participating local government units are eligibkle to
participate in the City's defined benefit plan provided by the Maine State
Employees' Retirement System. Approximately $1,000,000 or 30% of the payroll
of the City qualified for this plan for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Participants contribute between 6.5% and 7.65% of their wages to the plan.
The State also contributes to fund future retirement benefits. All other
employees are covered by the Social Security System.

Employees covered under this plan become vested after ten years of service.
The calculation of benefits is based on the highest three years of earnings
that the employee earned under the plan.

Complete information concerning the City's funding of the plan and obliga-
tion is available at the Maine State Retirement System office in Augusta.

Defined Contribution Plan

The City has established for its employees a voluntary deferred compensa-
tion plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan
permits employvees to defer a portion of their salaries until future years.
The City will match employee contributions up to 3.5% of their wages. The
employer contribution for the year ended December 31, 2010 was approximately
$68,000.
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PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

(4)

The City has accepted pledges toward the construction of the Wellness
Center. Approximately $100,000 of the pledges receivable are from one donor
and are anticipated to be collected in quarterly installments of $25,000
through December 2011. In the opinion of management, all receivables are
collectible.

JOINT VENTURE - TRI-COMMUNITY RECYCLING AND SANITARY LANDFILL

(5)

The Tri-Community Recycling and Sanitary Landfill is owned jointly by the
City of Caribou and the Towns of Fort Fairfield and Limestone. The Board of
Directors consists of four members residing in the three communities; two
from the City of Caribou and one from each of the other communities.

Financial statements for this joint venture were issued and reported on by
us in a separate report dated February 2, 2011. These financial statements
are available from the City's Finance Department.

A summary of the facility's activity for 2010 is as follows:

Amount
Total assets 514,344,522
Total liabilities 11,943,780

Total net assets 5 2,400,742

Total revenue $ 2,350,708
Less total expenditures 2,816,486
Less distributions to owner communities 763,342
Add prior period adjustment 1,280,023

Increase in net assets s 50,903

The City has guaranteed, together with the other member towns, a note and a
bond payable totaling $6,837,000 for the Tri-Community Recycling and Sanitary
Landfill. As of December 31, 2010, the balance owed was $6,676,1209.

The State of Maine Department of Environmental Protection reguires the
Landfill to place a final cover on its landfill once it is closed and perform
certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for twenty years
after closure. These estimated closure and post-closure care costs are being
recognized in the financial statements referred to above at the rate of
utilization of the landfill site. As of December 31, 2010, the estimated
total cost of closure and post-closure care was approximately $17,790, 000 of
which $4,991,000 was recognized. The management of the landfill expects to
use future earnings to cover the costs of closure and post-closure care. More
information regarding the accounting for closure and post-closure care costs
is available in the 2010 financial statements of the Tri-Community Recycling
and Sanitary Landfill.

NOTE RECEIVABLE - REVOLVING LOAN FUND

The Revolving Loan Fund had a 6.5% note receivable in monthly installments
of $218 principal and interest through June 2012 with a balance of $13,608 as
of December 31, 2010:



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

(3) NOTE RECEIVABLE - REVOLVING LOAN FUND (Continued)

As of December 31, 2010, the note receivable matures as follows:

Year Amount
2011 5 1,700
2012 11,908

513,608

(6) NOTES RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2010, the City's General Fund had the following notes
receivable:

0% Note receivable with a balloon
payment due in 2016. $200,000

6.5% Note receivable in monthly in-
stallments of $220 principal and in-
terest through June 2013. 6,627

2% Note receivable in annual in-
stallments of $7,365 principal and
interest through December 2028. 110,418

$317,045

As of December 31, 2010, the notes receivable mature as follows:

Year Amount
2011 S 7,420
2012 T 0TS
2013 T.310
2014 5,470
2015 5,580
2016-2020 229,630
2021-2025 32,710
2026-2028 21,250

5317,045

Notes receivable of $317,045 above are with the Caribou Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (CCCI) which has made various loans under the same terms noted
above. These notes are secured by the applicable notes held by the CCCI.

(7] CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As of December 31, 2010, cash and investments consisted of the following:

Carrying Amount

Deposits with financial
institutions 53,598,401

Deposits with financial institutions are subject to custodial risk, which is
the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The City’s policy is to invest in regional banks and to
insure the funds to as great a degree as possible. As of December 31, 2010,
the bank balance, including the various fiduciary accounts, was $3,598,401 of
which all was insured or collateralized.

The above information does not include any amounts on deposit for Cary
Medical Center or Caribou Utilities District.
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ACTIVITIES OF THE CITY OF CARIBOU SECTION 8 HOUSING PROGRAM

(9)

The City operates a Voucher Program which enables up to one hundred ninety-
three recipients to be granted housing assistance under the Section 8 Housing
Program but does not restrict their living to the Caribou area.

The Section 8 Program has a family self-sufficiency program that permits
families to stay in the program even if their income increases. This
increase in payments is collected by the program and deposited into an escrow
account for the families involved to use upon their successful completion of
the program. This money is listed as restricted cash in the balance sheet of
the special revenue fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital
assets including infrastructure in the Government-wide Statement of Net
Assets. The City elected to use the “modified approach” as defined by GASB
Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. As a result, no accumulated
depreciation or depreciation expense has been recorded for infrastructure.
Other nondepreciable assets include land. All other capital assets were
reported using the basic approach whereby accumulated depreciation and
depreciation expense has been recorded.

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Retire-
Beginning ments/ Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Governmental Activities
Nondepreciable:

Land 5 498,100 5 o S = s 498,100
Infrastructure 5,403,333 - - 5,403,333
Total nondepreciable 5,901,433 = - 5,901,433
Land improvements 1,006,354 - - 1,006,354
Buildings 6,082,134 - - 6,082,134
Vehicles 3,423,508 144,014 190,379 3,377,143
Equipment 888,164 17,912 101,500 804,576

Totals at historical
cost 17, 301.+-593 161, 926 291,879 17,171,640

Less accumulated depreci-

ation for:

Land improvements 986, 328 2,438 - 988, 766
Buildings 1,152,174 128,520 - 1,280,694
Vehicles 2,730,608 133, 301 174,163 2,689,746
Equipment 544,906 47,653 101,500 491,059

Total accumulated
depreciation 5,414,016 311,912 275,663 5,450,265

Governmental activities
capital assets, net $11,887,577 $(149,986) S$_16,216 11,721,375
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Retire-
Beginning ments/ Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Business-type Activity
Land $ 31,600 s - $ -8 31,600
Land improvements 4,673 - - 4,673
Buildings 186,792 - - 186,792
Vehicles 360,977 39,250 - 400,227
Equipment 181,617 3,055 = 184,672
Totals at historical

cost 765,659 42,305 = 807, 964

Less accumulated depreci-

ation for:
Land improvements 4,673 - - 4,673
Buildings 119,557 3,736 = 123,293
Vehicles 110,468 49,706 = 160,174
Egquipment 58,401 16,459 - 74,860
Total accumulated
depreciation 293,099 69,901 = 363,000
Business-type activity

capital assets, net s 472,560 S$_(27,596) S = .8 444,964

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Governmental Activities
General
Library
Protection
Public works
Recreation and parks
Other

Business—-type Activity

(10) GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

$ 17,570
6,555
92,090
89,592
80,121
25,984

$311,912

$_69,901

As of December 31, 2010, long-term debt consisted of a general obligation

bond payable annually at $279,566 principal plus interest of 4.34%.

As of December 31, 2010, the balance of $279,566 is included in current

liabilities.

Long-term debt activity during the year ended December 31, 2010, was as
follows:
Balance Balance
January December Due Within
1, 2010 Additions Reductions 31, 2010 One Year Interest
$559,132 S - $279,566  $279,566 $279,566  $12,273
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During March 2006, the City created the Caribou Downtown Tax Increment
Financing District, in which the City can use 100% of tax revenue from
incremental new assessed value of property located in the District to promote
private development. The City entered into an agreement with a developer in
order to provide for the consolidation of a state agency. Under the terms of
the TIF, incremental tax revenue over the next 15 years resulting from
improvements to the developer’s building will be returned to the developer.
The revenue will then be used to reduce the state agency’s rental expense.
The total benefit to the developer and state agency is expected to be

It was discovered that the allowance for uncollectible taxes had been
understated at December 31, 2009. An adjustment of 345,354 was necessary to
correct the allowance and, since this occurred in prior years, beginning fund
balance for modified accrual statements and net assets for the full accrual

(11) TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) DISTRICT
approximately $410,000 over the 15-year period.
(12) PRIQOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
statement.
(13) CONTINGENCIES

The United States environmental Protection Agency in May of 1991 gave
notice to the City and to approximately 400 other Potentially Responsible
Parties (PRPs) of the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) demand for its
past costs incurred in connection with an environmental “removal” action at
the Hows Corner Site in Plymouth, Maine. Subsequently in 2001, the City
entered into a Consent Decree with the EPA resolving its share of liability
to the EPA and to the State of Maine for past clean-up costs at the site.

A group of PRPs organized for the purpose of pursuing efforts to perform a
private Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS Study) and have
completed the remedial investigation, feasibility study, implementation of
the institutional controls, and the remedial design of the final remedy of
the site. 1In April 2004, the City entered into an Administrative Order on
Consent regarding the remedial design actions at the site. In October of
2006, EPA issued a final Record of Decision (ROD) detailing the final remedy
reguired at the site.

The final Consent Decree was signed by the City, EPA, and Maine DEP and
filed with the US District Court of Maine and received final approval and was
entered by the Court on January 25, 2010. The Consent Decree resolves the
liability of the City for the future remedy, State and Federal natural
Resource Damages, and all State and EPA past and future response and
oversight costs.

Under the Consent Decree, DEP and EPA reserve the right to pursue the City
in the future only in the event of the discovery of “unknown conditions” or
“new information” at the site. Management assesses this future risk to be
minimal based upon the past assessments/studies of the site making it one of
the most studied Superfund Sites on record.

The settlement set forth within the Consent Decree utilized funding from a
bond issuance, which was issued pursuant to 10 MRSA §1020-A, Waste Motor 0il
disposal site Remediation Program, and was used to pay the entire settlement
payment owned by the City in the amount of $150,808. The City had past
settlement assessments of $63,305, which is in the form of a 0% FAME loan
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CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

(14)

with two certificates of deposit of equal value in the City and FAME names
jointly used as security for the loan. The original intent of 10 MRSA §1020-
A was to pay the future and past settlement costs. The fund failed to yield
sufficient resources for both yet in 2009 reimbursed the City $2,068 of the
past assessments. L.D. 1434 “An Act to Streamline the Waste Motor 0il
Disposal Site Remediation Program” set forth 10 M.R.S.A §1020 3-A states that
FAME loan balances will be eliminated and repaid pursuant to the Fund. This
absolves the City of any current fiscal liabilities, balance $61,237 will be
released by FAME and returned to cash.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has reviewed subsequent events through June 17, 2011, the date
of these financial statements and determined that no additional adjustments
or disclosures are required in order for these financial statements to be
fairly stated.
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CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE
SUPPLEMENT 2
MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY.CAPITAL ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City is required to account for and
report infrastructure capital assets. The City developed an implementation to
determine the value of and included infrastructure cost in 2006.

The City has elected to account for their infrastructure assets using the
modified approach as opposed to depreciating them. GASB No. 34 does not regquire
municipalities to depreciate infrastructure if they can provide the following:

An asset management system employed that:
- Has an up-to-date inventory of eligible infrastructure assets

- Performs condition assessments of the assets and summarizes the
results using a “measurable scale”

- Estimates, on an annual basis, the annual amount needed to “maintain
and preserve the eligible infrastructure assets at the condition
level established and disclosed by the government”

The City documents that the eligible infrastructure assets are being “preserved
approximately at (or above) a condition level established and disclosed by the
government”.

Asset Management

Condition Rating System Rating
Good 100-80 1
Fair ) 79-65 2
Poor ' 64-50 3
Substandard 49-0 -

The City established a condition level of 70% which is a 2 rating. The
assessment itself may be made either by the governmental entity directly or by
external parties. The condition assessment may be performed annually or on a
cyclical basis. A condition assessment will be performed every 3 years commencing
in 2006. As of December 31, 2010, the City's street and sidewalk systems were
rated at an index of 84 and 74, respectively. The detail of the condition
assessments are as follows:

% of % of Asset Management
Condition Roads Sidewalks System Rating
Good 61% 36% 1
Fair 29% 53% 2
Poor to Substandard 10% 11% 3 and 4

As of December 31, 2010, the City had 10,183,822 square feet of roads with a
historical cost of $5,159,583. As of December 31, 2010, the City had 109,189
square feet of sidewalks with a historical cost of $243,750.

All expenditures related to infrastructure maintenance will be recognized as a
current expense since they are not depreciated. Expenditures relating to
infrastructure that are capital in nature (additions and improvements) will be
capitalized as part of the infrastructure assets because they increase the capacity
or efficiency of the related infrastructure asset.

The City had estimated expenditures of $496,000 to maintain infrastructure at the
desired condition level. Actual expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2010
were $471,849.



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

SCHEDULE 1
SCHEDULE OF OTHER REVENUES - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 01

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Excise taxes $1,154,000 S$1 ;156,557 5 25557
Interest on deposits 43,600 17,977 (25,623)
City clerk's fees 23,050 27,947 4,897
Fire protection, other towns 90, 680 91, 901 1,221
Police dispatching 7,000 11,237 4,237
Payments in lieu of taxes 44,600 44,268 ({332)
Income from City-owned property 40,000 45,666 5,666
Section 8 Housing Program Administration 82,000 81,333 (667)
Department of Transportation - Road Funds 133,474 157,536 24,062
Interest on delinguent taxes 64,000 57,647 (6,353)
Cable TV franchise 56,800 57,348 548
Interest on notes receivable 2,700 2,970 270
Lien collection fees 12,000 11,873 {127)
Tri-Community distributions 510,000 510,026 26
Miscellaneous 137,530 195,183 B ;653
Other revenues - budgetary (Supplement 1) $2,401,434 2,469,469 $ 68,035
Adjustments to modified accrual 7,914

Other revenues - modified accrual (Exhibit D) $2,477,383



CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF OTHER EXPENDITURES - GENERAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Municipal building

Tax assessment office
Code enforcement office
Nylander Museum

Airport

Cemeteries

Trailer Park
Contributions

Tax increment financing
Unclassified

Other expenditures - budgetary (Supplement 1)
Adjustments to modified accrual

Other expenditures - modified accrual (Exhibit D)

SCHEDULE 2
FUND
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
5 69,189 S 67,380 5 1,809
158,974 156,522 2,452
112,896 111,510 1,386
41,557 39,144 2,413
58,818 42,155 16,663
5,800 5,800 -
(5,383) (5,383) -
56,510 55,978 532
56,233 56,233 -
13,708 8,079 5,629
$568, 302 537,418 $ 30,884
(6,217)
$531,201



T65°'pS8°T 6T1ZLEY oLL'16Z'Z L9% ‘201 0¥9 ‘91T 0L0'09E €65 °ZTL'T
596’2 88T'S EST’S - - 00S'% £69°¢
6% ‘9¢€ - 61k ‘9€ 00§ 960°21 = £ZBET
vZy 'y - [ZA A ZZTE - - ZoE’t
90€ ‘€9 = 90€£‘€9 - - - 90€’€9
000'0¥%2Z = 000'0¥%Z - - - 000°0¥2
15e’6 - T5E'6 - - - 15’6
v 2T = TRP'ZT - = = TpR‘ZT
€6L'FT 6L0°S ZLB'61 = - 00s'y ZLE'ST
zze'9e 9p1 89% ‘9¢g - - 0SL’9 BIL'6T
(6L9°1) - (6L9°T) = - - (6L9‘T)
L6Z'T 690°ST 99¢ ‘91 - 00v 'y 0s8°’s 9119
9¥6 - 976 - - - 9¥6
9.8'82 . 9.8'8Z - - = 9.8'8Z
TP6'TT - TP6'TT - - - Th6°'1T
0ET'T = 0ET'T - - = OET’T
80L‘SE - 80L'SE €699 - - ST0‘62
BLT'S - 8LT'S - - - BLT'S
916 ‘282 0Z1'LZT 9E0’'0TH - - 000 ‘GET 9€0‘SLZ
(g9r) - (597) - - - (59%)
(ot1g) 009 L 060°L - = 000°0T (0162)
T€E8'1E = 1€8'1€E - - - 1E8'TE
9Z¥‘sT 81z PLIST LOT - - L95'ST
6FS ‘T - 6FG5'T - B - 605°T
6E8'60T 696 'E BOB'ETT 069 ‘LT 80€’Z1 000’81 058’69
LT - LT - - - ILT
TrZ'61 - ThZ'61 - - - TvZ'6T
8G¥ oLV 826 - - - 826
SZV'9 0TE‘ET SEL'ET S - - SEL'BT
Z92'¥1 - 29zZ'p1 - = 0zZ9't A 2Rt |
80F'12 990°'S PLP'9Z TeL T - 0GL‘9 €£00'8T
6GEFT LEL'E 951'%Z Z6E'TT - - poL’ZT
(009) 009 - - - = =
L60'EZ 675’62 9%9'8¥ 98L'¥ 000’01 006’22 096 ‘01
60Z'LY 920 ‘9¢€ GEZ'EB GGT'LT - 000 'SE 08B0 ‘1€
L29'9 - LZ9'9 - - - L29'9
z68'ze €0T'1 S66°E - 88% 0S¥k LSO'E
LS0'2 - LS0'Z - - 006 LST'T
T9T’LOY - T191’LO¥ = i i B 000 ‘08§ 67 'S5€E
SST'TL 9FZ ‘19 T0p ‘ZET - - 000°0€ T0% ‘20T
FP15759 - y15'69 - - 000'L p1G’85
BER'TT 0Z6 ‘08 8SL'Z6 6EL'E 9LT 8L = EF8'0T
065°LE - 06G'LE - - 008't 06L'GE
LET ‘62 - LET'6Z - = 058°S LBz 'ee
ThE %9 9£L'61 LLT'®8 rLE'ZZ {ops'2) 000’9 EVE ‘8BS
p68°02 1€V GZE'TZ oL - - s5z'12
£58'2 - £€s8'z - - 006 EG6°T
A ¥80‘8 505 '1€E 851711 - = LFPE'0Z
£Z0'ET 99 'p LBY'LT - - 00S‘¥p LAT'ET
F16°G S BEL'S $ ZIL'TI § oo00'z s - $ 008’1 § Zie'L 5
R £V EREN ESI0T STHeTTEAY IS0 §X5I5UeIL EUSTIE T AIEnUER
SaoueTeRg ~-Tpuadxy 12307 /S3uein ~-Taxdoaddy sadueTeqg

Be ATNAHEHOS

010 Tt YEEW

aNnd TYHINED - SAYILNC TYIIdYD 40 JTINAIHOS

ANIYW ‘NOEIY¥YD 40 ALID

saJasey UOT3eOTITIneeg OTATD
aazassy buTsnoy nogried
BaI®SaY MIBd ISTTBIL

ueo] 11O @3sem yinowlid
juswdoTaaag DTWOUODE QD
yioodg juted s)yaoM 211qnd
sjuswaascrdur yIed TeTIIsSnpurl
9AI9S9Y SOUBUSIUTERN 307 buryaed
aazsssy burpTrng TedroTunpy
ueld eatsuaysadwod

saxassy Iajndwod

aaIssey nesand Isyjesm/3iodity
192359670 QND/ AWK

aazssay buriseurbug/butuuerg
anxssay sesg Tebat

saI®S®Y YUue] TonJd

aaxassy butgand

sbruTRIg SpPEOY/S5198135
juswaseTdey wa3sAs otides
aaxesay jIodity

yoleH 3jusudoreasg A3jTunumod
2AIDSOY UBH) UOTIESID8Y

pueg AjTunuuo) nogried

2AI8S9Y IBWO0IH TTRI]

sazasey punocxbAerg satiesin
puog SUTTIOD - UOT1E8ID8Y
80UPUS3IUTRN Spaeodg As)D0H
aaIasay aTTgowmoug

BAIDSBY I8MOR UMET UOT1RS8ID8Y
aanzssay juswudinbyg uoTieszosy
sj3oaloxg +oadg -doaddeuopy -osy
aazssey Iejndwo) syIed/uoTieaiDay
aaxasay Ie) 80TTOd

sazesey Jusudrinbiy Md

aazssay burtprTTng BuTuTeal 21T4
SAIBSEY WROJ UOTIB1S BITH
BAI9S®Y 850H 81TJ4

aazasey juswudinby aixta
jusussassy Ajxsdoxg

aazasay Juswasoxdur yaed
wexboig STTRIL 03 STTRY
suoT3Tstnboy pue]

sjuswsacxdw] I93JUSDT UOTIELSIOSY
jusudtnby juswixedeqg 2071704
spunj peajeucg juswiIedsg 8O0TTO4
anzasay IJoinduoc) AIeIgrl

punj TetIowsy AIeIql]

unasny IspueTAN

sjusweacIdul Tood AITUnUWOD



EEL'060'TS 9£5’'61Z’S$ 69Z'0TE’'9S GI9'ZOES 89B'LEES 6TS'BIS’'ES  LGZ'IST'ZS
165'p58°1T 6TZ LEY oLL’tez’e Lav’zot 079911 0LO'09€E E6S'ZIL'T

(818‘g9L) LIE'ZBL Y 66F'BT0'¥ 8rT'002 Bzz'1ze 65V ‘BST'E 799 ‘8EV

(Lyo ‘o1l LE9'PL 066 ‘€9 - 066 €9 - -

(1¥8'pLE) L6B'8SE'Y 950 ‘v8Y'E e - SLL'0E6'E 182 '€5S

# 6E0'T 6E0T 0Z9'T £€E - (b6}

(069 ‘02) 0TE (o8€ ‘02) - TPT 19 - (125'18)
ooz'v - 00z'v ~ = - o0z'w

0oL - 00L = - = 00L

T90'% SE 960 ‘% - - BET'¥ (zv)

(16) - (16) - = - (16)

955 - 95¢S = - = 95g

(88g) - (gag) - - - (Bgg)

(Z2v6 ‘98) BLO'FOE 9ET'LTIZ & 081’221 9zz's0¢ (oLz'otT)
Ly0‘z 9LE £Zh'e - - 05E’1 €L0'T

1S A0 6GE'T 00S'¥ 0E6'E - - 0LS

L9E '69 £55'%2 0Z6'€h £EZ 95 = - LB9 ‘LE

(005 1) - {005'1) - - - (005 ‘1)

(621) - (621) - - - (62T)

0sz‘z - 0szZ’'z & - - 0sz’'z
£T18'8¢Z - £18'82 = - - £18'82
088't - 088‘¢t 088'¢ - = =

6LZ'2 - 6LZ'2 = - - 6LZ'Z

000‘z - 000'z = . - 000'e

(99g‘p) - (99€'¥%) - - ~ (99€ 'y}

= 995 99¢g - = - 995
86L'€9 - 86L"'E9 Te6’'1eT  (pBT’ZZT) - LVO'¥S
ZI0'2 - zZ10'2 - - - zZio'z

098 ‘FE 00L'T 095 ‘9€ - F9L'GE 000'S {roz ‘w9l

(6T¥) - (6TW) - - - (61%)

ooL’‘z 006’8 002'TT - - = 002'T1

088’9 vee FOT'L - - 000’1 v0T ‘9

(L8) - (Lg) 6661 - 0L6°0T (950 '€T)

6L - 6L = = - 6L

659°2 £F0 ‘9 zoL'se 555§ - - LVT'8

1€ I5quss53g TSI STHETTEAY TISUI0 SIojsUBa] SUOTIE T ATEndep
ssoueTed -Tpuadxy TR30L /saueas ~T11doaddy saoueTeg

(penuTiucy) gNnd TYYEANZES - SAYILOO TYLIAYD A0 FTNAIAHOS

qe dTNA3IHOS

ANIYW ‘NOgI¥YD 30 ALID

TYIOL

Bf 8TNPBYOS TEIOIANS
Te303qns

wexboxg 9EOEN
JUBUITUWOD GE OS5
bututexl juswizedsg =114
youner] 3jrog

uoTieTpawsy Ajzsdoig psatnboy xel

TepoW yoledstg 2114

s3ybt7 sewistayp

wa3shg eIsue) aDTTO4

itedesy jooy sbeaen soTTO4
Tepowsy uays3TH Juswiiedag =ITJ
a0TATaS 3g8(

2IN300NIJSLIJUT UMOIUMO(Q
aaIasay 38ped

dIL

UOoT3IONIJSUOD SSauTI=M

juexs AjTunuumo) TTBWS 4dd
SITEYD ITEJS SDUBRTOUY
A3taoyany AIe3TTTH SUTER
uoTie3ITTTqRYsY BuTsnon 98dd
AlTinoeg pueTsuwoj

subTS nogqrIeD O3 SWODTaM
jueIs sTTEI]

waishg puncg wooy TTD2UNOD
ssauTTeM AjTunuwo) nogqried
aazasey Jusudinbiy wWI
syuswesoxduy 3xo0daTy
paddeoTpuey AIieIgI]
Aydeabojoyg TETISY

aazassy 4Qd 23TJ/edueTnqury
jusudinby [TPws soueTngUy
jueis Aemaies AjTunumod
aazasay Isjus) AjTUnumo) SUOTT



EES'TZ9 § £98'28% 96E'POLS FLO‘9ES {ooo’svkls - $ ZZE'ETILS
856°'LZ BEG 968’82 968 ‘82 - - -
6L9'C - 6L9'Z - - - 6L9'2
6ET'Y - GET'V - {ooo'oL) - 6ET 7L
080T - 080'T = - - 0801
SPO‘LTT 8LT'L €zz'vzl = - - gzz'vet
GST'ETE - 5GT'E1E 8LT'L - - LL6 'SOE
LLY'SST § LYL'PLS vZzZ'0€ZS = $ ooo’'sz § . $ $2Z'5023%
Tt Iequaosg EEF i) STUEITEAY T30 EXIoJsUEL] BOCTIE T Axenuer
saoueTeqg -Tpuadxy Te30l ~-Tadoxddy saoueTeg
0102 '1t 9EdNd03d JJA0Nd dvdX dAL 8904
aNnd TYHANED - SAYILOO TYLIAYO-NON J0 EINAdHOS
¢ ITNAIHOS

ANIYW ‘NOEI¥NYD 40 ALID

aaIassl uUCTINGTIIUC) WiH
SWTJIBAQ SDUBTNOUY /23T
g8ATB8S8I JUBWSITISY
juswaiTiax A3TD
UOT3IEDTITSSETD pue =beym
aTgeaTaDay
sueoT - pung ueo] ButaToasy
ysey - pungj ueo] Butatoasy
ssoussqy peaiesuadwo]



ASSETS
Cash
Note receivable (Note 5)

CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

LIABILITIES, SURPIUS AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

DUE TO GENERAL FUND

FUND BALANCE

SCHEDULE 5
BALANCE SHEET
FOR ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Total
Revolving Airport Special
Boat Loan Fund Improvement EECBG Revenue
Launch #10 Program Program Funds
5 - $205, 926 34,860 = S 240,786
= 13,608 s - 13,608
S = $219,534 34,860 = $ 254,394
$ = $ = = - $ =
20,690 = = 10,647 31,337
(20, 690) 219,534 34,860 (10,647) 223,057
$ = $219,534 34,860 - $§ 254,394




STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

CITY OF CARIBOU,

MAINE

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE 6

FOR THE YFEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Total
Revolving Airport Special
Boat Loan Fund Improvement EECBG Revenue
Launch #10 ram Program Funds
REVENUES
Grants - Federal = - 5 - s 79,727 $ 63,990 5143,717
- State 61,141 = - - 61,141
Interest income & 1,490 - = 1,490
Total Revenues 61,141 1,490 79,727 63,990 206,348
EXPENDITURES
Construction and improve-
ments 310 - 1,700 74,637 76,647
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES (EXPENDI-
TURES OVER REVENUES) 60,831 1,490 78,027 (10,647) 129,701
OTHER USES
Transfer to general fund - - 43,167 - 43,167
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
FUND BALANCE 60,831 1,490 34,860 (10,647) 86,534
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 (B1,521) 218,044 - - 136,523
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $(20,690) $219,534 S 34,860 $(10,647) $223,057




CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

SCHEDULE 7
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAXES - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
2011 2010 2009 Taxes Prior
Total Taxes Taxes and Liens Taxes
UNCOLLECTED AT
JANUARY 1 $ 798, 965 S = S (10,368) $548,771 5260,562
2010 COMMITMENT
($272,074,400 @.0241) 6,556,993 = 6,556,993 - -
SUPPLEMENTAL TAX 9,468 - 8,820 648 -
6,566,461 = 6,565,813 648 =
COLLECTIONS 6,498,502 5,196 5,951,199 428,288 113,819
TAX-ACQUIRED PROPERTY 52,184 - 10,401 12,538 29,245
ABATEMENTS 15,105 - 8,862 4,543 1,700
6,565,791 5,196 5,970,462 445,369 144,764
UNCOLLECTED AT
DECEMBER 31 5 799,635 $ (5,196) S5 5B4,983 $104,050 5115,798
REPRESENTED BY
Real Estate Taxes $ 663,858 5 (5,138) S§ 565,514 5 97,210 5 6,272
Personal Property
Taxes 135,777 (58) 19,469 6,840 109,526
$ 799,635 $ (5,196) $ 584,983 $104, 050 $115,798




FELCH & COMPANY, LLC

I"_".:'tt'éf;',c:(fl Publiz Heountants

P.O. BOX 906

CARIBOU, MAINE 04736
(207) 498-3176

FAX (207) 498-6278
E-MAIL: CPA(@FELCHCPA.COM

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council of the
City of Caribou, Maine

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activity, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Caribou, Maine as of and for the year ended December 31,
2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have
issued ocur report thereon dated June 17, 2011. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Caribou, Maine’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Caribou, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Caribou, Maine’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might
be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.



To the City Council of the
City of Caribou, Maine

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Caribou,
Maine’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the City of Caribou,
Maine in a separate letter dated June 17, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City
Council, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
szf wa@v;ﬂ (S

June 17, 2011



FELCH & COMPANY, LLC

f_";‘.z!ﬁiﬁsaf Public Hecountants

P.O. BOX 906

CARIBOU, MAINE 04736
(207) 498-3176

FAX (207) 498-6278
E-MAIL: CPA(@FELCHCPA.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT
ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council of the
City of Caribou, Maine

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Caribou, Maine with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2010.
The City of Caribou, Maine’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility
of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
City’'s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Caribou, Maine complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with regquirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit,
we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

3



To the City Council of the
City of Caribou, Maine

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City

Council, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
f‘log/( d Lec
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CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued: gqualified
Internal contrel over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes

Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? yes

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? ves
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes
Significant deficiencies identified

that are not considered to be material

weakness (es)? yes

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with section 510(a) of Circular A-1337? yes
Identification of major programs:
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program CFDA #14.871
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $300, 000
Ruditee gqualified as low-risk auditee? yes

SECTION II - FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION III — FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.

X none reported

X none reported

ungualified
X no
X no
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CITY OF CARIBOU, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

There were no audit findings reported for the year ended December 31, 2009 that
require follow-up in the December 31, 2010 report.



